
June 8, 2020 City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 2 

 
 

City of Lake Geneva, 626 Geneva St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147- 262.248.3673- www.cityoflakegeneva.com 
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JUNE 8, 2020 6:00 P.M. 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 

 
Members:  

Mayor Charlene Klein, Council President, Rich Hedlund, Council Vice President, John Halverson,  
Alderpersons: Tim Dunn, Mary Jo Fesenmaier, Cindy Flower, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Joan Yunker 

 
THE CITY OF LAKE GENEVA IS HOLDING ALL MEETINGS VIRTUALLY TO HELP PROTECT OUR COMMUNITY 
FROM THE CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) PANDEMIC. YOU CAN CALL-IN OR WATCH THE MEETING IN SEVERAL 
WAYS:  
 
1. Livestream at the City of Lake Geneva Vimeo Channel found here www.vimeo.com/lakegeneva 
 
2. Television:  Watch live broadcast of the meeting on Spectrum Cable Channel 25 
 
3. Listen to audio via phone: (602) 333-2017 (Long distance rates may apply) (888) 204-5987 (Toll Free)  

Access Code: 9746153 
 
4. You can provide public comment on agenda items by emailing your comments to the City Clerk at 

cityclerk@cityoflakegeneva.com or you may deliver your written comments to the City of Lake Geneva City Hall, 626 
Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI  53147. All written comments must be provided to the City Clerk by 5:00 P.M. on the date 
of the meeting.  All written comments will be read aloud during the agenda item when public comments are allowed during 
the meeting.  

 
CITY HALL WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC DURING THE MEETING.  YOU CAN OBSERVE THE MEETING 
VIA THE ABOVE LISTED COMMUNICATIONS. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Mayor Klein call the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Alderperson Flower 
 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 

 
a. American Legion 4th of July Parade scheduled to occur July 4, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 
6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
 

7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
 

8. Approve the Regular Council Minutes of May 26, 2020 and Special Council Minutes of May 28, 2020 as prepared 
and distributed 

 

 

http://www.vimeo.com/lakegeneva
mailto:cityclerk@cityoflakegeneva.com


June 8, 2020 City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 2 

 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on May 19, 2020. Any item listed on the 
consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires no second, is 
not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
a. Original application of Massage Establishment License for O’Mann Therapeutic Massage LLC 

 
10. Items removed from the Consent Agenda 

 
11. Second Reading of Ordinance 20-04 An ordinance adding sub-sub-sub-subsection xiii to sub-sub-subsection 1c, 

Property Management Requirements, and amending sub-sub-sub-subsections i, ii, and iii of sub-sub-subsection 1e, 
Access and Inspections of sub-subsection (Y), Tourist Rooming House, of subsection (8) Accessory Land Uses, of 
Section 98-206, Detailed Lad Use Descriptions and Regulations of Chapter 98: Zoning Ordinance, of the City of 
Lake Geneva Zoning Ordinance to amend provisions of the Short Term Rental Ordinance regarding making 
business records available, inspection of premises and the installation of knox boxes 

 
12. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R43 a resolution to ratify the Emergency Proclamation approved by the 

Chief Executive Officer Pertaining to the COVID-19 Pandemic and Declaration of Emergency 
 

13. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R42 a resolution combining Polling Locations for the August 11, 2020 
Partisan Primary Election 

 
14. Discussion/Action regarding correspondence received of VISIT Lake Geneva in regards to the 2020 Concerts in the 

Park 
 

15. Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of May 19, 2020 & June 2, 2020- Ald. 
Howell 

 
a. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R38 amending City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule as it relates to 

the short term rental permit application fee (Motion made at May 19, 2020 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee 
Meeting: Motion by Hedlund to lower the short term rental fee to $750, second by Yunker. Motion carried 3-2, with Halverson and 
Fesenmaier voting no. Council May 26, 2020: Motion by Fesenmaier to continue until the next Council meeting, second by Dunn. 
Motion carried 7-1, with Hedlund voting no.) 
 

b. Discussion/Action regarding Pay Request #5 from MSI General INC for work completed on the Riviera 
Restoration Project in an amount not to exceed $548,346.65 

 
c. Discussion/Acceptance of June 2, 2020 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment Approval 

Reports 
 

16. Mayoral Appointments 
 

a. Confirming the Citizen appointment of Cindy Forster Fueredi to the Board of Park Commissioners for a term 
to expire May 1, 2022 

 
17. Adjournment 

 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 

Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

 



May 26, 2020 City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020 6:00 P.M. 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 
 
Members: Mayor Charlene Klein, Council President, Rich Hedlund, Council Vice President, John Halverson,  
 Alderpersons: Tim Dunn, Mary Jo Fesenmaier, Cindy Flower, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Joan Yunker 

 
 
Mayor Klein called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Alderperson Dunn led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Roll Call 
Present: Hedlund, Halverson, Howell, Dunn, Straube, Fesenmaier, Flower, and Yunker 
Absent: None 
 
Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 
Mayor Klein noted that offered a ninth amended emergency proclamation that will extend through June 30, 2020. 
Finance Director Hall noted that the main lobby of City Hall windows will not be open, however the vestibule will be. 
The City staff will not accept paperwork through the slot and that only two people will be allowed in the vestibule at a 
time. She added that City Staff will still accept paperwork through the mail or dropbox. 

 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 
None 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
Deborah Nelson; Spoke in opposition of the reduction of fees for the Short Term Rental Permits. 
 
Barbara Gaffke; Spoke in opposition of Riviera Beach being open and that the City needs to devise a plan. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
None 
 
Approve the Regular Council Minutes May 11, 2020 Council as prepared and distributed 
Motion by Hedlund to approve, second by Halverson. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on May 19, 2020. Any item listed on the 
consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires no second, is not 
discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
-Renewal application of Massage Establishment License for Element Massage Studio 
 
Flower requested that this item be removed from the consent agenda. 

 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda 
 
Renewal application of Massage Establishment License for Element Massage Studio 
Flower questioned if this business is allowed to operate with the COVID-19 pandemic and if the City needs to monitor 
this license with that in mind. Attorney Draper stated that the City doesn’t have anything in place to do such a thing. 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Yunker. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
First Reading of Ordinance 20-04 An ordinance adding sub-sub-sub-subsection xiii to sub-sub-subsection 1c, Property 
Management Requirements, and amending sub-sub-sub-subsections i, ii, and iii of sub-sub-subsection 1e, Access and 
Inspections of sub-subsection (Y), Tourist Rooming House, of subsection (8) Accessory Land Uses, of Section 98-206, 
Detailed Land Use Descriptions and Regulations of Chapter 98: Zoning Ordinance, of the City of Lake Geneva Zoning 

 



May 26, 2020 City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 3 

Ordinance to amend provisions of the Short Term Rental Ordinance regarding making business records available, 
inspection of premises and the installation of knox boxes 
Mayor Klein offered Ordinance 20-04 as a first reading to the Council. Fesenmaier stated that the Council should pause 
on moving this forward until a list of the different overnight stay locations within different ordinances can be compiled. 
This should also include the different fees and number of times that these locations are inspected.  
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R41 a resolution authorizing the City of Lake Geneva Administrator to work 
with City Leadership staff to determine best practices for potential opening of City facilities as it relates to the COVID-19 
pandemic 
Administrator Nord stated that the resolution in the packet and that this would give the Administrator the authority to 
work with the staff on how the City is to re-open the City facilities. Flower would like to see the right-of-ways included in 
this resolution based on the gathering from Memorial Day weekend. Straube agreed that something needs to be considered 
again based on what happened over the holiday weekend. 
  
Motion to amend by Fesenmaier by substituting language after the Resolution number 20-R41 that Lake Geneva Common 
Council directs the City Administrator and Staff to research and publish, for special consideration a local COVID-19 
bounce back plan the Council to review on Thursday, May 28, 2020 via Zoom to discuss and adopt a plan, second by 
Fesenmaier.   
 
Flower stated that there are things that the City can control without closing the City’s borders. She indicated that the City 
sidewalks are too narrow for people to walk with social distancing without any the impediments such as garbage 
receptacles, light poles, and business sidewalk cafes. Howell stated that these items are not a part of this resolution and 
should be considered at a later date. Fesenmaier stated that all considerations should be placed together for the public to 
view and understand what the expectation is.  Attorney Draper stated that other communities that have done this have 
followed the guidelines of the local health department. He added that the language in the statute is very vague but that he 
can research the capabilities under those state statutes with other municipal attorneys. He stated that this would be a 
directive of the Council and it would be a policy that they would need to approve. 
Flower stated that she doesn’t want the businesses shut down, she wants the CDC guidelines followed within City 
controlled lands and areas. Straube doesn’t want the City to discourage the outdoor areas as that may be the only way that 
restaurants can be open to the public for dine-in services.  
Howell would like to see this addressed separately at a special Council meeting and not at this time. 
Dunn feels that nothing should be done at this time and that the City has limited control over what people can do when 
they come here to visit.  
 
The amendment was read and the motion carried 6-2, with Howell and Dunn voting. 
 
Motion by Flower to approve the original resolution as amended, second by Hedlund. Motion carried 6-2, with Howell 
and Dunn voting no 

 
Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of May 19, 2020- Ald. Howell 

 
Discussion/Action regarding abolishing the City of Lake Geneva Policy & Evaluation Regarding Issuance of Regular and 
Reserve Intoxicating Liquor Licenses 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Fesenmaier. Flower stated that this was established but it didn’t work out as it 
was intended. A new policy should be developed and brought back to the Finance Committee for discussion. Motion 
carried on a roll call vote 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R38 amending City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule as it relates to the short 
term rental permit application fee (Motion made at May 19, 2020 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Meeting: Motion by 
Hedlund to lower the short term rental fee to $750, second by Yunker. Motion carried 3-2, with Halverson and Fesenmaier voting no.) 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. Attorney Draper stated that fee needs to be reduced as it needs to 
reasonably match the administrative costs to implement it. Hedlund stated that when the fee went into effect it was 
understood that it would be adjusted as time passed. 
Fesenmaier stated that she feels that the City is under cutting the cost based on the work that needs to be done to monitor 
these places. Attorney Draper stated that the administrative cost decision needs to be done by the departments that inspect 
those properties. 



May 26, 2020 City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 3 

Motion by Fesenmaier to continue until the next Council meeting, second by Dunn. Motion carried 7-1, with Hedlund 
voting no. 
 
Discussion/Acceptance of May 19, 2020 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment Approval Reports 
Motion by Straube to approve, second by Dunn. Finance Director Hall stated that these bills to get approved by the 
Finance Committee and signed by the available members. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Recommendation of the Planning Commission of May 18, 2020- Ald. Dunn 

 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R39 a resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
filed by Patrick Lynch 30715 Cedar Dr. Burlington WI 53115 for a request to install a 90 foot pier with 2 boat slips for the 
property located at 940 Maytag Rd. located in the Estate Residential - 1 (ER-1) zoning district. Tax Key No. ZCE00005 
Motion by Dunn to approve, second by Howell. Dunn stated that there wasn’t any opposition form the neighbors. Motion 
carried on a roll call vote 8-0. 

 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 20-R40 a resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
filed by Brian Nelson 21605 N. Tiffany Ct. Kildeer IL 60047 for a request to install a 100 foot pier with 3 boat slips for 
the property located at 1640 Lake Shore Dr. located in the Estate Residential - 1 (ER-1) zoning district. Tax Key No. 
ZLM00039 
Motion by Dunn to approve, second by Howell. Hedund stated that this was objected to by the neighbors and that their 
objections were voiced at the Plan Commission meeting. Dunn stated that this is allowed and the DNR has approved it as 
well. Flower stated that she isn’t worried about the length of the pier, but the width of the pier. She stated that based on 
that she could understand the complaints from the neighbors as it seems to be very close to the other docks. Hedlund 
stated that he can understand the complaints and feels that this will impede on the neighbors. Attorney Draper stated that 
the DNR has the ultimate approval of navigability of the water and that again, this was approved. Motion failed 3-5, with 
Hedlund, Halverson, Fesenmaier, Flower and Yunker voting no. 

 
Mayoral Appointments 

 
Confirming the Citizen appointment of Terry O’Neill to the Geneva Lake Environmental Agency 
Motion by Fesenmaier to approve, second by Dunn. Fesenmaier stated that the agreement with GLEA does indicate a 
citizen representative but it’s never been appointed. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Adjournment 
Motion by Hedlund to adjourn, second by Halverson. Motion carried 8-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 
 



May 28, 2020 Special City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 3 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA SPECIAL COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES 
THURSDAY, MAY 28, 2020 6:00 P.M. 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 
 
Members: Mayor Charlene Klein, Council President, Rich Hedlund, Council Vice President, John Halverson,  
Alderpersons: Tim Dunn, Mary Jo Fesenmaier, Cindy Flower, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Joan Yunker 
 
 
Mayor Klein called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call 
Present: Howell, Halverson, Dunn, Straube, Fesenmaier, Yunker, and Flower   
Absent: Hedlund 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
Clerk Kropf read the following Public Comments: 
 
Alastair Cumming; Spoke in opposition of eliminating outdoor seating for restaurants. 
 
Barbara Gaffke; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Hedlund joined the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 
 
Bill Gage; Spoke in favor of letting the businesses in Lake Geneva stay open. 
 
Dana (No Last name offered): Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Dimitri Anagnos; Spoke in favor of letting the businesses in Lake Geneva stay open. 
 
Eric Howden; Spoke in favor of letting the businesses in Lake Geneva stay open. 
 
Eric Klug; 710 Center St; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Kathy & Thomas George; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Lisa Campo; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Lisa Ghent, Erin & Pete Greenley, and Elizabeth Devito; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being 
implemented in the City. 
 
Marc Klug; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Roger Wolff; Spoke in favor of letting the businesses in Lake Geneva stay open. 
 
Ron Geman; Spoke in favor of best practices as related to COVID-19, being implemented in the City. 
 
Sean Payne; Spoke in opposition of closing down Wrigley Drive for pedestrian traffic. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
All correspondence was stated during the Public Comment Period. 
 
 

 



May 28, 2020 Special City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 3 

Discussion/Action regarding a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for Salvatore J. Dimiceli Sr. Trust, 101 Broad St. to create a 
new 60,076 Single Lot CSM in the Town of Geneva as identified on the certified survey generated by surveyor Mark 
Miritz and dated Feb 20, 2020 and revised April 15, 2020 Project #18.1108, Tax Key No. JA361000001 
Motion by Dunn to approve, second by Halverson. No discussion. Motion carried on a roll call vote 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding conducting Council meetings via Zoom 
Mayor Klein stated that currently the only meetings that are being held are the Council and Standing Committees. She 
noted that this equates to about ten meetings a month and that if the other non-standing committees are allowed to meet, 
this would raise the costs to conduct the meetings considerably. Klein did not know when the meetings would be open to 
the public and that would have to be determined by the City of Lake Geneva Public Safety Team. Attorney Draper noted 
that there isn’t a requirement that meetings be held at City Hall, they just need to be open to the public. 
Motion by Howell to revisit this subject at the end of June, second by Yunker. Motion carried 8-0.  
   
Discussion/Action regarding the City of Lake Geneva Ninth Amended State of Emergency Proclamation and City of Lake 
Geneva Bounce Back Plan relating to the COVID-19 Pandemic 
Fire Chief Peters gave the Council a brief summary of the progress of the pandemic and the items that various government 
agencies have done to contain the threat. City Attorney Draper stated that the Council has to be careful about 
implementing policies that would prohibit people’s movement throughout the City. As the Supreme Court has struck 
down the WI Health Department’s Order some municipalities have loosened their restrictions as well. Draper added that 
the City could only restrict movement if an “imminent threat” is present and that there isn’t substantial evidence to 
support the idea of a threat. 
Draper added that Milwaukee and Dane County have County Health Departments that have certain legal powers to restrict 
people’s movements; these restrictions are being challenged by those in Dane County. 
Director of Public Works Tom Earle addressed the Council regarding the community throughout Memorial Day weekend. 
His staff was in town all day, every day throughout the weekend. He noted that the amount of visitors was comparable to 
a fourth of July weekend. He applauded staff for their efforts and felt that they operated exceptionally well. He added that 
the beach was regulated very well and that the staff was able to keep up with the demand of the public restrooms, unlike 
in the past. The department has added fifty-seven extra garbage cans to help with the increase of to go orders and that 
these garbage receptacles were emptied about every two hours. He added that there has been additional social distancing 
signage along with hand sanitizer stations placed downtown. 
City Administrator Nord reviewed his memo regarding the previous Council meetings discussion regarding sidewalks and 
parking in the downtown. He stated that there are items on the sidewalks that shouldn’t be removed as part of a 
functioning downtown, such as trees, benches, and garbage cans. He added that an idea of modifying the parking situation 
and the possibility of closing the streets could be vetted by the Council. The last component was public education 
regarding face coverings and social distancing. He added that maybe the City or the BID could give plaques to businesses 
that are following CDC guidelines stating as such.  
The Council discussed the sidewalk cafes downtown and agreed that they would not like to see them removed. Halverson 
stated that he would be in favor of the suggestion that the parking on the north side of Wrigley be blocked off. Earle stated 
that if the Council were to approve that, the City would need Class III barricades which the City does not own. Lieutenant 
Way stated that the barricades that City currently has could not stop a moving vehicle and could potentially be a safe 
hazard.  
 
Attorney Draper noted that if the Council wants to change the ordinances regarding sidewalk café they will need to direct 
staff to draft a resolution as such. 
 
Motion by Flower to direct staff to draft a resolution for Council consideration to the emergency proclamation to 
recommend that the Walworth Co best practices for social distancing are implemented in the sidewalk café permits 
including restricting general traffic through the space of outdoor dining areas, second by Hedlund. Motion carried 8-0 by a 
roll call vote. 
 
Mayor Klein stated that the next item for discussion was the placement of items on the sidewalks. Flower stated that the 
placement of benches could be placed uniformly for traffic flow. Straube stated that maybe they could be placed near the 
street as there are already garbage cans and trees in that area. If the consensus us to move the benches, the DPW Director 
could implement that without a motion from the Council.  
 



May 28, 2020 Special City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 3 

The next item for discussion would be extra signage to promote social distancing and the wearing of face coverings. 
Flower stated that she would be in favor of extra signage and the idea of plaques for businesses that are promoting best 
practices. Straube stated that she didn’t feel that requiring people to wear a mask in times when social distancing is not 
possible. 
 
Motion by Straube to direct staff to draft a resolution for Council consideration to the emergency proclamation that people 
be required to wear masks in situations where 6-foot social distancing cannot be maintained, second by Fesenmaier.  
 
Attorney Draper and Alderperson Halverson agreed that the enforcement of this could be almost impossible and is very 
subjective. Lieutenant Way stated that this motion is very vague and it would be extremely difficult to enforce. She also 
added that they cannot enforce or issue citations based on ambiguity; they need to have specific guidelines and the 
issuance of citations cannot be guess work. Howell expressed concerns with having the Police Department to enforce this 
and worries that this will create major issues and potential violence.  
 
Motion was re-read and it failed 2-6, with Hedlund, Howell, Halverson, Dunn, Yunker, and Flower voting no. 
 
Flower suggested that the right hand turns on Main and Broad be a strict through right as this would give people waiting 
to cross more room to stand. Straube added that maybe the crossing signals be automatic without the use of a button. Earle 
stated that having the crosswalks be automatic could be a software change but that it would be contradictory to the 
movement of traffic as desired. Earle added that the restriction of right turns could not be done before this upcoming 
weekend and would take some time to plan. Earle stated that he would work with Tapco regarding the potential software 
change. 
Straube would like to see the Parking Staff wearing their masks and cleaning the kiosks as they pass them; she indicated 
that she is not seeing this being done. 
Harbormaster Frame stated that there have not been any studies to indicate that wearing masks outdoors can help with the 
spread of the virus. These are meant to be worn in confined areas. 
 
Motion by Halverson to direct staff to draft a resolution for Council consideration to the emergency proclamation that the 
City restrict parking on the north side of Wrigley Drive on Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays and to include barrier 
placement for pedestrian safety, second by Flower.  
Howell stated that he would not be in favor of this due to the handicapped parking and accessibility. 
Motion was re-read and failed on a roll call vote 2-6, with Hedlund, Howell, Dunn, Fesenmaier, Straube, and Yunker 
voting no. 
Nord stated that he would like the City to work with the BID and VISIT Lake Geneva to create a campaign that offers a 
uniform message. 
Fesenmaier would like to see groups maybe create yard signs encouraging people to wear masks.  
Straube did indicate that she would like to see the beach run as it was for Memorial Day weekend and felt that it went 
very well. 
 
The Council then discussed the Ninth Amended Emergency Proclamation. Fesenmaier clarified with the City 
Administrator that each department has filed in writing on how the department will limit public contact. Flower noted 
issue with allowing businesses to have items placed on the sidewalks in front of their buildings. 
 
Motion by Hedlund to remove item #16 from the Ninth Amended Emergency Proclamation, second by Flower. 
 
Earle stated that this is a building by building issue and would depend on the where the right-of-way is located. Halverson 
noted that this would be a reinforced by the current ordinance. 
 
Motion was re-read. The motion failed 4-4 on a roll call vote, with Howell, Dunn, Fesenmaier, and Yunker voting no. 
Mayor Klein voted no to break the tie. 
 
Motion by Howell to approve the Ninth Amended Emergency Proclamation, second by Straube. Motion carried 8-0. 
  
Adjournment 

 
Motion by Flower to adjourn, second by Straube. Motion carried 8-0. The meeting adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 







Ordinance 20-04   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

An ordinance adding sub-sub-sub-subsection xiii to sub-sub-subsection 1c, Property Management 
Requirements, and amending sub-sub-sub-subsections i, ii, and iii of sub-sub-subsection 1e, Access and 
Inspections of sub-subsection (Y), Tourist Rooming House, of subsection (8) Accessory Land Uses, of Section 
98-206, Detailed Lad Use Descriptions and Regulations of Chapter 98: Zoning Ordinance, of the City of Lake 
Geneva Zoning Ordinance to amend provisions of the Short Term Rental Ordinance regarding making business 
records available, inspection of premises and the installation of knox boxes 

 
Committee 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-04 First Reading :   
Second Reading : 

May 26, 2020 
June 8, 2020 

 
The Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, does hereby ordain as follows:  

 

1. Sub-Sub-Sub Sub-subsection xiii is added to Sub-Sub-Subsection 1c, Property Management Requirements of 
Sub-Subsection (y) Short-Term Rental, of Subsection (8) Accessory Land Uses of Section 98-206 Detailed 
Land Use Descriptions and Regulations of Chapter 98: Zoning Ordinance of the City of Lake Geneva Zoning 
Ordinance is to read as follows:  
 

“xiii.  To ensure compliance with section 1 b and c above, or pursuant to an audit as authorized under Sec. 
66.0615(2)(a), Wis. Stats., the Designated Operator hereunder shall upon written request by the City, which 
must specify the reason for the request and provide at least seven days to comply, provide a copy of the 
Business Record described above.” 
 
2. Sub-Sub-Sub Subsections i, ii, and iii of Sub-Sub-Subsection 1 e, Access and Inspections, of Sub-Subsection 

(y), Short-Term Rental, of Subsection (8) Accessory Land Uses of Section 98-206 Detailed Land Use 
Descriptions and Regulations of Chapter 98: Zoning Ordinance of the City of Lake Geneva Zoning Ordinance 
are amended to read as follows:   

 
i. The City shall be authorized at all reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the owner, 

and with either the owner’s consent or a special inspection warrant under Wis. Stat. Sec. 
66.0119, except in cases of emergency where no special inspection warrant is required, and 
as provided in Sec. 66.0119(2), Wis. Stats., to enter and examine any building, structure, or 
premises, for the purpose of ensuring compliance with this ordinance.  If the owner declines 
to consent to an inspection without a warrant, the City may not conduct an inspection 
under this section without first obtaining a special inspection warrant under Wis. Stat. Sec. 
66.0119 except in cases of emergency where no special inspection warrant is required, and 
as provided in Sec. 66.0119(2), Wis. Stats.  The owner, agent or occupant of any such 
premises who refuses to permit, or prevents or interferes with any entry into or upon the 
premises by any such inspector with a special inspection warrant or in cases of emergency 
where no inspection warrant is required and as provided in Sec. 66.0119(2), Wis. Stats., shall 
be in violation of this section.  It is not a violation of this section to refuse to grant voluntary 
consent to an inspection. without a special inspection warrant. 



Ordinance 20-04   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ii. The City has adopted the Knox Box key box system requiring providing for the installation 

of miniature vaults be that are placed upon the exterior buildings, gateposts or other 
applicable locations.  Contained within the vault are the keys that will allow access to the 
Short-Term Rental in emergency situations.   

 
iii. Knox boxes shall be placed on the building for emergency entry into the building.  The City 

may require more boxes dependent on the size of the structure or facility.  Designated 
Operators and owners are encouraged, but not required to install the Knox Box Systems on 
their short term rentals.  Designated Operators and Owners of short term rentals 
acknowledge that the City shall not be obligated for damages occurring to short term 
rentals in the event emergency access to a short term rentals is required and there is no 
Knox Box System installed on the property.   

 

2. That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication, as provided by law. 

 
Approved by the City of Lake Geneva Common Council on this 26th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
  Charlene Klein, Mayor Date 

 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 

 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 20-R43   Page 1 of 3 
 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution to ratify the Emergency Proclamation approved by the Chief Executive Officer Pertaining to the 
COVID-19 Pandemic and Declaration of Emergency 

 
Committee: 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-R43 Date: June 8, 2020 
 

WHEREAS, an emergency, namely the COVID-19 Pandemic, has impacted or is anticipated to 
impact the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin; and 
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to sections 323.11 and 323.14(4)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes, Tom 
Hartz, as the chief executive officer of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, proclaimed a state of 
emergency in effect from March 16, 2020 until the Council could meet; and 

 
WHEREAS, there continues to be a public health emergency as a result of the COVID-19 

Pandemic and continued measures must be taken to protect the public health and welfare of the citizens 
of the City of Lake Geneva, the employees of the City of Lake Geneva, and the many people who visit 
our city,   

  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to sections 323.11 and 323.14 of the 

Wisconsin Statutes hereby ratify Mayor Charlene Klein’s Ninth Amended Proclamation of State of 
Emergency and adopt as their own Proclamation of State of Emergency the following provisions to 
address the continuing public health emergency:  

 
1. The Mayor will use her best efforts to meet with the City Administrator and City Department Heads 
to discuss and coordinate a City response to new CDC, Walworth County Health Department, State of 
Wisconsin COVID-19 information, proclamations, recommendations, and requirements to protect all 
City residents provided the conditions allow such meetings. 
 
2. All City meetings will be conducted virtually.  The public will be able to access and           observe all 
meetings by the communications and technology made available and posted by the City Clerk in the 
agendas for such meetings.  The public will not be allowed into City Hall for meetings until the State of 
Emergency expires, is rescinded or altered by future proclamations by state, county or municipal 
authorities.   
 
3. Recommend that whenever in person staff meetings are required, there be created a “socialization 
distance” of 6 feet, however staff is encouraged to utilize the technology available to conduct such 
meetings virtually. 
 
4. Recommend that all standing committees and the boards and commissions set forth below conduct 
meetings virtually and utilize all the technology and equipment available in the City Hall Council 
Chambers. 



Resolution 20-R43   Page 2 of 3 
 

 
5. All City meetings except for City Council, Plan Commission, Utility Commission, Police & Fire 
Commission and City of Lake Geneva Standing Committees be postponed. 
 
6. Recommend that Department Heads adopt procedures to limit employees' direct contact 
with the public. 
 
7. Encourage all residents of the City of Lake Geneva comply with Federal and State guidelines and 
recommendations for maintaining personal and occupational health.  
 
8. Release the Security Deposits of all scheduled private and public events at the Riviera that were 
cancelled because they exceeded Governor Evers' public gathering limit of 10 people or may be required 
to cancel because of future limitations imposed by the city, county, or state officials in response to the 
Covid-19 Pandemic. 
 
9. Authorize emergency purchases of goods and materials. 
 
10. Authorize emergency purchases of services. 
 
11. Authorize emergency costs to the labor force. 
 
12. Authorize the Mayor to take any further necessary actions to protect the health, safety 
and public welfare of the citizens of the City of Lake Geneva in those instances the City 
Council is unable to meet with promptness to address any issues requiring immediate 
attention. 
 
13. City Hall will be closed to the public for all walk-in city business. The City Clerk will 
provide means for the public and any vendors to conduct business through the mail, electronically, or by 
phone. If face to face business is required, appointments must be made with appropriate City personnel.  
The City Administrator of Lake Geneva is to work with leadership staff of the City of Lake Geneva 
Departments to identify and carry out best practices (in accordance with guidelines by the CDC, 
Walworth County Health Department and the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation) to operate 
city departments and city facilities in an efficient manner and in a manner to protect the health and welfare 
of employees and the public and develop a plan to eventually open city buildings and facilities in a 
responsible manner and time frame using best practices outlined above.    
 
14. The Lake Geneva Fire Department located at 730 Marshall Street will be closed April 7, 2020 as a 
polling place to protect the health of our first responders. City Hall located at 626 Geneva Street will be 
the sole polling place for Aldermanic Districts I, II, III, and IV for future elections until this emergency 
proclamation expires or is rescinded by the City Council. 
 
15. Playground equipment in city parks will remain closed until an effective means is available to sanitize 
the equipment.   
 
16. Because of the economic effects of various emergency orders put in place since, March 12th, 2020, and 
to provide economic relief for our downtown businesses during the pendency of this Ninth Amended 
Proclamation of State of Emergency (until it expires, is amended or is rescinded), the provisions of Section 



Resolution 20-R43   Page 3 of 3 
 

98-206(8)(f) of the City of Lake Geneva Zoning Code are relaxed to allow the placement of merchandise 
for sale in those areas designated for “Sidewalk Furnishings” as set forth in Section 62-67(9), of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin.  
 
17.  That sidewalk café permits granted to restaurants and businesses selling confectionary goods and 
frozen creamery goods as authorized by Sections 62-67(6) and (8) of the Municipal Code of the City of 
Lake Geneva are modified to provide that all tables placed in the City right of way under current permits 
shall be placed so that Walworth County best practices for social distancing are implemented in the 
sidewalk café permits including restricting general traffic through the space of outdoor dining areas. 
 
This Proclamation shall take effect immediately and shall continue in effect until June 30th, 2020 at 11:59 
p.m. or such earlier time as a quorum of the Governing Body convenes and rescinds or alters the 
Proclamation. 
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
 

 

Charlene Klein, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                     Date 



Resolution 20-R42   Page 1 of 1 
 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution combining Polling Locations for the August 11, 2020 Partisan Primary Election 

 
Committee: 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 20-R42 Date: June 8, 2020 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Geneva ordinarily uses two polling places and for elections; and 
 
WHEREAS, voter turnout for August 11, 2020 Partisan Primary has been historically low, and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the COVID-19 Pandemic the City of Lake Geneva Fire Department (Station #1), 730 Marshall St, 
is not open to outside visitors and cannot be available as a polling location, and 
 
WHEREAS, providing open and accessible polling places to the voters is extremely important, as well as considering 
the prudent use of City tax dollars, and 
 
WHEREAS, Sec. 26-6, of the Municipal Code of Lake Geneva authorizes the City Council to designate the City Hall 
building, 626 Geneva Street as the polling place for Aldermanic districts I,II, III, and IV when only statewide primaries 
or referendums are on the ballot and low voter turnout is anticipated, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that for the August 11, 2020 Partisan Primary Election only, residents of 
Aldermanic Districts I, II, III, and IV shall vote at the City Hall Building, 626 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI. 
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
 

 

Charlene Klein, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                     Date 



VISIT Lake Geneva  527 Center Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147  (262) 248-1000  VisitLakeGeneva.com 

 

MEMO 
Date:    June 2, 2020 

To:   Dave Nord, City Administrator 

From:   Stephanie Klett, VISIT Lake Geneva 

 

 

Dear Dave, 

Thanks to you, Mayor Klein and City Attorney Draper for meeting with the VISIT Lake Geneva 
team on June 2nd to discuss the annual Concerts in the Park series at Flat Iron Park. Due to the 
spread of COVID-19, we have had numerous local residents, businesses and even sponsors of 
the event inform us they do not want the concert series to happen this summer. They are 
concerned about the spread of the coronavirus and the message it conveys to residents and 
visitors. They also let us know when the pandemic is over, or a vaccine is approved, they will 
proudly be back on board, big crowds and all. 

We respectfully request an official reply from the City of Lake Geneva in support of 
cancellation.   

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Klett 

Stephanie Klett, President & CEO 
VISIT Lake Geneva 

 



 1 

    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES  
   CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 

 
The City of Lake Geneva may retain overpayments of taxes, fees, licenses, and similar 

charges when the overpayment is $2 or less, unless such refund is specifically requested by the 
remitter. 
 

LICENSES & PERMITS 
           Temporary Retailer’s $10.00 Each 
           Provisional/Temp. Operator  (60 days) $15.00 each 
           Operator- 1 Year License (First Time Applicants)  $50.00  

 
           Operator- 2 Year License (Renewal) $75.00 
           Class A Liquor $500.00  
           Class A Beer $100.00 
           Class C Wine $100.00 
           Class B Liquor (Quota License) $500.00 
           Class B Beer $100.00 
           Reserve Class B Liquor $10,000.00 
           Change of Agent $10.00 
           Publication Fee $25.00 
Extension of Premises $25.00 

ANNEXATION FILING FEE – DUE UPON PETITION $200.00 
AMUSEMENTS  
           Coin Operated music machine/juke box $20.00 per machine 
ASSESSMENT REQUEST LETTER              $35.00 each 
BANNER PERMIT $1.00 per banner per day of display 
BUSINESS LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
           Late fee after July 1 $20.00 (in addition to license fee) 
CAT LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Neutered $8.00 Annual 
              Spayed/Neutered $4.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption    
            of new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

DOG LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Unneutered $30.00 Annual 
            Spayed/Neutered $15.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption of  
           new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

BOWLING ALLEY $20.00 per lane 
BILLIARDS OR POOL TABLE $40.00 per table 
CARRIAGE  COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Carriage $25.00 
CLOSING OUT SALE $25.00 event 
CIGARETTE/TOBACCO LICENSE * STATUTORY $100.00 Annual 

Resolution 20-R38 
The Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva does hereby establish the 

following revised schedule of fees, effective May 26, 2020 



 2 

CREAMERY PERMIT $50.00 
DIRECT SELLERS PERMIT $50.00 nonrefundable application fee 
EVENT PERMIT (PER POLICY)  
      PUBLIC ASSEMBLY PERMIT Non-profit organization: No charge 

For-profit organization: $60 per day 
      BLOCK PARTIES OR GAZEBO USE (1 hour Photo Session in Gazebo in 
Flat Iron Park) 

Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $75 

      TIER 1 EVENT Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $250 for an event 
up to seven days, additional $50 per day 

thereafter 
 

      TIER 2 EVENT Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $500 for an event 

up to seven days, additional $100 per 
day thereafter 

MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT  
           Investigation $50.00 Annual 
           Transfer $50.00 
MOBILE HOME PARK LICENSE $100.00 Annual 
PARADE PERMITS $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
BASEBALL TOURNAMENT PERMIT FEE – VETERAN’S PARK $1,000 Security Deposit 
     Friday Rental $150.00 
     Saturday Rental $300.00 
     Sunday Rental $300.00 
PARKING STICKERS  
           Resident & Non-Resident Residence Owners  
           – Lasts 2 years (even)  – 2 hours free parking 

4 free per residence 
each additional $25.00 

           Business Owner 
           – 2 hours free parking 

  $25.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$25.00 for 1 year (effective Jan. 1 2017) 

$50.00 (effective Jan. 1, 2018) 
           Walworth County Resident 
            - 2 hours free parking 

$160.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$80.00 for 1 year 

           Parking Lot Permit $400.00 Annual   
PARKING RATES  
           Parking Stall Rate for stalls on Wrigley Dr.,  
          10 stalls at the boat launch, stalls on lower Center St.  
          south of Main St., stalls on lower Broad St. south of  
          Main St., 700 & 800 blocks of Main St., and Center St. 
          Parking Lot  
          All other Parking Stalls Rate 

$2.00 per hour 
 
 
 
 

$1.00 per hour 
           Parking Meter Bags/Contractor Permits $10.00 administrative fee 

$25.00 deposit per locked bag 
March 1 – Nov 14: $20.00 daily per bag 

Nov 15 – Feb 29: $10.00 daily per bag 
PARKING TICKETS     
           Expired Stall (Over 2 hours; Over 5 hours; Over 25 min.) $20.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles $20.00 
           Improper Use or Display of Sticker $20.00 



 3 

           Backed into parking stall $25.00 
           Compact Car Only $25.00 
           No Parking Zone $25.00 
           Over the Line $25.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $40.00 
           Handicap Zone $150.00 
           Parking with Trailer or Trailer alone in Sage Lot D $25.00 
           Parking any Vehicle without a Trailer or with an  
           occupied Trailer in Boat Launch Parking Lot F  

$25.00 

LATE FEES     
           Expired Stall After 10 days $40.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles After 10 days $40.00 
           Backed into parking stall After 10 days $50.00 
           Compact Car Only After 10 days $50.00 
           No Parking Zone After 10 days $50.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $80.00 
           Handicap Zone  $300.00 
           Second Collection Letter Fee $6.00 
           Vehicle Suspension Release Fee $20.00 
  
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS * STATUTORY  
           Photocopies 
           (can include hourly wage for gathering data) 

$0.25 per page 

RADON TEST KIT $10.00 
REISSUE CHECK FEE $25.00 
RETURNED CHECK FEE (NSF) $30.00 each 
ROOM TAX LICENSE $10.00 Annual 
SHOWS, CIRCUS, CARNIVALS  
           Circus $50.00 per day 
           Tent Show – Day 1 $15.00 
           Tent Show – Each Additional Day $10.00 
           All Other $2.00 per day 
SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT $15.00 per seat Annual 
STREET USE PERMIT $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
           Up to two days                         $40.00 
           More than two days $100.00 
TAX EXEMPT REPORT FILING (every other year) $20.00 
              Late Fee $20.00 
TAXI CAB COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Car $25.00 
TAXI CAB DRIVER LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
THEATER LICENSE  
           Up to 1,200 seats $200.00 
           Over 1,200 seats $275.00 
TOURIST ROOMING/SHORT-TERM RENTAL LICENSE $750.00$2,000.00 Annual 
TRAPPING PERMIT $25.00 Annual 
CITY HALL MEETING ROOM RENT                $25 per event 

 
 
 



 4 

LAKEFRONT 
BEACH 
(Open Memorial Day thru Labor Day –  
  no glass containers allowed) 

 

           Children age 6 and under Free 
           Children age 7-12                        $4.00 per day 
           Ages 13 to Adult                         $8.00 per day 
Resident Beach Tags (Maximum 6 per Household) $3.00 per tag 
Seasonal Pass Adult 13 and up                      $80.00 per year 
Seasonal Pass Child 7-12               $40.00 per year 
     Beach Bathrooms – Opening/Cleaning Hourly Rate 
BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT  
     One-Time Launch Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $7.00 $8.00 
           Less than 20 feet $10.00 $11.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $14.00 $21.00 
           26 feet and over $16.00 $24.00 
     Season Launch Permit  Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $70.00 $80.00 
           Less than 20 feet $100.00 $110.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $140.00 $210.00 
           26 feet and over $160.00 $240.00 
COMMERCIAL BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT $1,000 per year (unlimited launches) 
ANNUAL WEST END PIER SLIP, LAGOON SLIP, BUOY, DINGHY, 
KAYAK AND PADDLEBOARD RACK LEASE PERMITS  

Rates may change on an annual basis by the 
Common Council 

      WEST-END PIER 24’ SLIP  
             Resident $1,774.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $2,661.00 
             Non-Resident $3,547.00 
      WEST-END PIER 26’ SLIP  
             Resident $2,070.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $3,015.00 
             Non-Resident $3,842.00 
      LAGOON SLIP & BUOY   
             Resident $764.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $1,272.00 
             Non-Resident $1,774.00 
      DINGHY, KAYAK, & PADDLEBOARD RACKS  
             Resident $131.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $191.00 
             Non-Resident $262.00 
BUOY/SLIP RATES ESTABLISHED ANNUALLY BY RESOLUTION  $30.00 per year 
           Season Launch Pass for Kayaks, Canoes and 
           Paddleboards (non-trailer, non-motor) 

 

RIVIERA RENTALS (ALL CONFERENCES/CONVENTIONS & WEDDINGS HELD 
NOVEMBER 15 THROUGH APRIL 30) 
           Maximum attendees is 380 

 

           Security Deposit  $1,000.00    



 5 

           Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)    $2,500.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday) $3,000.00 
           Resident & Non-Resident Weekday Rental Fee  
          (Monday - Thursday) 

$500.00 

           Not-for-Profit Group Rental Fee $400.00 
           Per Hour Set Up Fee $20.00 per hour 
           Security Guards for Event (2) Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
           Extra Security Guard over 250 attendees Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
RIVIERA RENTALS (WEDDINGS HELD MAY THROUGH NOVEMBER 15) 
           Maximum attendees is 380 

 

           Security Deposit $1,000.00 
           Resident Rental Fee (Monday - Thursday) $625.00 
           Resident Rental Fee (Friday & Sunday- Non-Holiday) $1,700.00 
           Resident Rental Fee (Saturday) $1,950.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee (Monday- Thursday) $1,250.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee (Friday & Sunday- Non-Holiday) $3,400.00 
           Non- Resident Rental Fee (Saturday) $3,900.00 
  

 

BUILDING & ZONING  

Building  

Minimum permit fee for all building permits Residential $60.00 
Commercial $100.00 

Residential Construction:  

            One & Two family & attached garage (new,  
            addition and alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Single Family Construction 

$1,000.00 Minimum 
            Accessory buildings & garages  $0.25 / sq. ft. 

            Decks  $0.15 / sq. ft., or $60.00 Minimum 

            Roofing and Siding $60.00 

Commercial Construction:  

Residences - Apartments, Three family & over, Row Housing, 
Multiple Family Dwellings, Institutional (new, addition and 
alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Commercial Construction 

 $1,500.00 Minimum 
Local Business, Office Building (new, addition or alteration) $0.30/ sq. ft. 

Manufacturing or Industrial (new, addition or alteration)  $0.30 / sq. ft. 

Commercial , structures, alterations, residing, reroofing, 
repairs, where square footage cannot be calculated 

$10.00 / $1,000.00 valuation 

Plan Examination:  

            One and Two Family Residence $150.00 

            Apartments, Three Family Residence, Row 
            Housing, Multiple family Building 
            State Approved Plans 

$150.00 plus $10.00 /unit 
 

Commercial, Industrial, Institutional & Additions 
            State Approved Plans 

$350.00 
 



 6 

            Heating Plans, Energy Calculations, or Lighting 
            Plans submitted separately 

$125.00/ Plan 

 Additions, Alterations to 1 & 2 Family Dwellings $75.00 

            Accessory building over 240 sq. ft., and decks for 
            1 & 2 family dwellings 

$40.00 

Wisconsin Uniform Building Permit Seal $45.00 

Occupancy Permit  
 

$60.00/Residential 
$100.00/Commercial & Industrial 

Temporary (6 months or less Commercial only) $75.00 

Permit Renewal (6 month extension or less) $200.00 Commercial  
$50 Residential 

Heating and Air Conditioning:  

Heating and Air Conditioning Distribution Systems  $3.00/ 100 sq. ft. of conditioned area 
with a minimum fee of $60.00 

New Residential Heating 
 
 
Replacement Residential Heating 
 
Commercial New or Replacement Heating 

$125.00 first unit, $60.00 each additional 
unit. 

 
$60.00 / unit 

 
$150.00/ unit, up to and including 

150,000 BTU units. Additional fee of 
$20.00 / each 50,000 BTU fraction thereof 

up to a maximum of $900.00 / unit. 
Residential Air Conditioning – Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 
 

$60.00 / unit 
 

Commercial Air Conditioning - Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 

 
$150.00/ unit up to 5tons or 60,000 

BTU's. Additional fee of $20.00 each ton 
or 12,000 BTU's or fraction thereof up to 

a maximum of $900.00 / unit 
Permanently installed Wall unit (example – Fireplace, wall pack) $60.00 / unit 

Commercial/Industrial Exhaust Hoods and Exhaust Systems $75.00  

Plumbing Permit:  

Fixture Count $15.00/ fixture, drain or device, 
 $60.00 Minimum 

Water Main $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, $60.00 Minimum   

 
Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   

private water main, / $9.00 per 
manhole$60.00 Minimum 

Storm Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main / $12.00 per manhole 

or basin $60.00 Minimum 
Exterior Grease Trap $100.00 

Electrical:  



 7 

Residential Minimum $60.00 minimum.  
 

New Residential Service $100.00/ Service First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main,  $60.00 minimum & 

/ $9.00 per manhole. 
Residential Service Update $100.00/ Service 

Residential Sub-Panel $50.00/ Panel 

Residential Generator $75.00 (includes gas piping) 

Temporary Electrical Service $100.00 up to 200 Amps. 
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Electrical Minimum $150.00 Minimum 

Commercial Electrical Re-Inspections $150.00/ Inspection 

Commercial Service ( New or Update) $150.00 First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Sub-Panel $50.00 First 100 Amps,  
$10.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Generator $150.00 (included gas piping) 

Commercial Low Voltage $1.00/ Device, $100.00 Minimum 

Commercial Exterior Light Fixture Replacement $100.00 per site 

Residential Electrical Permit - for minor installations with fees 
not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector.  
Commercial Electrical Permit - for minor installations with 
fees not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector. 

$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,   
$60.00 minimum. 

 
$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,  

$150.00 minimum. 

Erosion control fees:  

            New One and Two Family Buildings $125.00 / lot 

            One and Two Family Additions and Accessory 
            Structures 

$50.00 

            Multi-Family Residential, Commercial, Industrial  
            and Institutional 

 $175.00/Building, plus $5.00/1,000 sq. 
ft. disturbed lot area up to $2,000.00 max. 

            Other $40.00 

Zoning  

Zoning Permit $60.00 

Temporary Use (per Section 98-906) $60.00 

Zoning Verification Letter $60.00 

Sign Permit (per Section 98-907) $60.00 minimum or $0.35/ sq ft of sign 
area 

Early Start Permit to start construction $125.00 (1-2 family) 
$250.00 (all others) 

Fuel Tanks $75.00 administrative fee/ tank for 
installation or removal 



 8 

Wrecking or Razing- Building Inspector may waive the fee if 
the structure is condemned 

$100.00 ( One or two family residences 
and accessory Structure over 250 sq ft) 

Commercial/ Industrial Razing $350.00 

Moving buildings over public right-of-ways $250.00 plus $0.03/ sq ft 

Special Inspections and Reports $150.00/ inspection report 

Text Amendment (per Section 98-902) $400.00 

Zoning Map Amendment (per Section 98-903) $400.00 

Certified Survey Map (CSM) For each new Residential Lot Created: 
$400.00 

For each new Commercial Lot Created: 
$200.00 

Plat Renewal $150.00 

Conditional Use (per Section 98-905) $400.00 
$100.00 

Site Plan (per Section 98-908) $400.00 

Variance (per Section 98-910) $400.00 

Interpretation (per Section 98-911) $150.00 

Appeal (per Section 98-912) $400.00 

PD Zoning Map Amendment (Includes 1 PIP Review) $750.00 

PIP Review $400.00 

Filing or Recording fee with City Clerk, plus actual recording 
fee 

$10.00 

Triple Fees: Upon failure to obtain a permit before work on a 
building has been started, except in emergency cases, the total 
fee shall be triple the total fees charged. 

 

NOTE: Fees shall be charged on gross square footage defined 
as follows: 

• The exterior dimensions, including attached 
garage and each floor level 

 

NOTE: In determining costs, all construction shall be included 
with the exception of heating, air conditioning, electrical or 
plumbing work. 

 

NOTE: All fee amounts shall be rounded up to the next full 
dollar amount. 

 

NOTE: An additional fee for plan review may be assessed at 
the time of application for renewal of the permit. 

 

* Base fee may be modified by Subsection (4) of Section 98-935, Fees of the Zoning Code 

 

CEMETERY FEES 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Full Burial) $675.00 
Opening Grave - Saturdays (Full Burial) $800.00 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Cremation) $450.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays (Cremation) $525.00 
Two cremations buried in same grave at one time $100.00 extra charge 



 9 

Opening Grave – Weekdays - Baby Under 1 Year   $200.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays - Baby Under 1 Year  $300.00 
Grave (50% Perpetual Care) $650.00 
Grave – Single Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $400.00 
Grave – Double Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $500.00 
Columbarium Niche (includes opening & inurnment)  
($200 Perpetual Care) 

 $1,200.00 
$1,000.00 bottom row 

2nd Inurnment if Niche allows for two $150.00 additional 
Niche Door Inscriptions $240.00 
Frost Charges (November 1 to March 15) $75.00 
Stake Out Fee for Foundations $50.00 
Foundation Charges $0.40 per square inch 
Use of Cemetery for Functions 20% of Gross Receipts 

POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 
FINGERPRINTING  
          City Residents $15.00 
          Individuals employed in business in city limits  
          or working for city licensed business 

 
$15.00 

          Non-Residents $60.00 

PUBLIC WORKS FEES 
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEE  
          Curb Cut/Driveway Approach Fee  
          Right-of-Way Excavation Fee $25.00 
          Storm Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
          Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
Special brush, limb and refuse pick-up $25.00 
Dumpster Delivery $24.00 per 15 minutes 
Dumpster Pick-up $50.00 per dumpster 
 $50.00 plus additional landfill fees 

 
 
 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES 

Fees for Apparatus and Personnel 1 hour minimum 
and fractions 

thereafter 
on hourly rates 
unless stated 

otherwise 
Chief, Deputy Chief or Assistant Chief $26.00/hr. 
Fire and EMS Personnel $26.00/hr. 
Engine/Squad $550.00/hr. 
Truck (aerial apparatus) $875.00/hr. 
Brush Truck $300.00/hr. 



 10 

Air Boat $300.00/hr. 
Technical Rescue and Utility $500.00/hr. 
Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chief, or Command Vehicle $50.00/hr. 
Utility $50.00/hr. 
Ambulance $270.00/hr. 
Paramedic Intercept Fee (Option a OR b)  

a.  Flat Rate Billed to Requesting Municipality $400.00 
b.  Shared Revenue from Requesting Municipality 50% Monies 

Received 
EMS First Responder and Transport Fees   

Residents Fee $150.00 per call 
Non-Resident Fee $200.00 per call 

Ambulance Transport Fee Schedule   
Advanced Life Support Base Rate $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (ALS2) $1010.47 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept) $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept ALS2) $1010.47 
Equal Level Staffing Mutual Aid $300.00 
Basic Life Support Base Rate $700.00 
Mileage Charge $20.00 per mile 
Supplies used fee   

Defibrillation $100.00 
EKG Monitoring $150.00 
Spinal Immobilization $150.00 
I/O Needle & Associated Supplies $200.00 
Airway Placement $150.00 
Oxygen & Associated Supplies $100.00 
IV & Associated Supplies $150.00 
CPAP Disposable $150.00 
Epi 1:1,000 $35.00 
Nitro Tabs $22.00 
Albuterol/Ventolin $30.00 
Glucagon $211.00 
Narcan $48.00 
ASA $32.00 
Dextrose 25gms/50cc $32.00 
Glucose $10.50 
CO2 Monitor Nasal/Tube $40.00 
Oil Dry $10.00 per bag 
Class A, B, or AB Firefighting Foam $30.00/gallon 
BLS Supplies Used $75.00 



 11 

ALS Supplies Used $125.00 

Paramedic Medications  
Adenocard $31.00 
Amiodorone $125.00 
Atropine $37.00 
Calcium Chloride $43.00 
Dextrose 5% $32.00 
Diltiazem $9.00 
Diphenhydramine $5.00 
Epi 1:10,000 $16.00 
Etomidate $94.00 
Heparin $32.00 
Ketamine $54.00 
Lidocaine $36.00 
Magnesium Sulfate $7.00 
Methylprednisolone $101.00 
Metoprolol $9.00 
Midazolam $68.00 
Norepinephrine $22.00 
Ondansteron $28.00 
Sodium Bicarbinate $37.00 
Sublimaze $5.00 
Succinylcholine $41.00 
Clopidogral $19.00 
Dopamine $97.00 
Hydromorphone $10.00 
Hydroxycobalamin $1270.00 
Metoclopromide $5.00 
Morphine Sulfate $56.00 
Trananexamic Acid $96.00 

Fees Relating To Permits Required  

           Fire pit burn permit 
$15.00 each fire or 

$50.00 yr 
           Fireworks permit $50.00 
           Burning permits $50.00 
           Key box processing fee $10.00 
           Operational Permit $75.00 
Fees Relating To Fire Protection Systems  
Basic system Review  
Fee is charged for systems without hydraulic calcs 

                    $250 

Fire Sprinkler, Fire Control and/or Fire Suppression system plan 
review with one set of hydraulic calculations.  (Fee is charged for 
each separate floor and /or area of building per system and 
review.) 

$300.00 

Verifications of  Additional Hydraulic Calcs 
(fee is charged for each additional set of hydraulic calculations 
required by the AHJ) 

$175.00 



 12 

Additional review of same system.  (Fee applies to all re-
submittals.) 

       $300 

 Site inspection during installation 
2 hour minimum Note: system may not be concealed prior to 
inspection.  Inspections are required for all systems. 

$75.00/hr. 

Modifications to existing systems  
   Min. fee per system without hydraulic calcs $75.00 
   Fee per sprinkler up to 15 sprinklers w/o calcs $20.00 ea. 
   Fee per sprinkler up to 15 with calcs $200.00 
   Fire Pumps per review $300.00 
Fire prevention inspection fee schedule:  
Residential Building Type:  

   4 to 36 units 
 $10 per unit per 

year 
   37 to 60 units  $400 per year 
   61 to 99 units  $450 per year 
   100 units and above  $500 per year 
Commercial:  
   Under 1,000 square feet  $50 
   1,000 to 4,999 square feet  $100 
   5,000 to 24,999 square feet  $150 
   25,000 to 99,000 square feet  $200 
   100,000 to 174,999 square feet  $400 
   175,000 to 249,999 square feet  $700 
Industrial:  
   Under 5,000 square feet  $100 
   5,000 to 24,999 square feet  $200 
   25,000 to 99,000 square feet  $300 
   100,000 to 174,999 square feet  $500 
   175,000 to 349,999 square feet  $800 
Additional conditions: 
(a) The fee for hotels and motels shall be the same as for 
residential property, except that the fee shall be calculated on a 
per room basis. 
(b) Square footage refers to the total floor area of any building or 
structure. 
(c) Inspection fees shall be charged to the property owner. Any 
fees unpaid by November 1 of each year shall be entered upon the 
tax roll as a special charge against the property and all 
proceedings in relation to the collection, return, and sale of the 
property for delinquent real estate taxes, shall apply to the 
inspection fee. 

 

Sprinkler system underground mains  
   0-200 feet $75.00 
   201-999 feet $125.00 
   1000 or more                 $300 
Fire hose standpipe connections $15.00 each 
Other fire protection systems (hood, wet & dry chem.)                    $300 
Fire alarm systems per control panel $250.00 

https://www.ecode360.com/14136054#14136054
https://www.ecode360.com/14136055#14136055
https://www.ecode360.com/14136056#14136056


 13 

Fire Alarm system manual pull stations, initiating devices; this 
includes smoke, heat, flame, ionization, photoelectric detectors, 
water flow devices and all monitoring devices per review. 

$50.00 up to 3 
$10 each additional 

Witness of all required tests – 2 hour minimum           $150/hr. 
Inspection during installation $75.00/hr. 
Fire protection Consulting on systems and or for occupancies or 
permits 

$75.00/hr. 
1 Hour Minimum 

 
Adopted this 26th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Charlene Klein, Mayor                                     Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 
       
 



Category: Zoning: Length of Stay: Owner/manager 
Availability: 

Inspections/ 
Frequency: 

Licenses: 

Short Term-Rental All zoning 
classifications 

6 – 29 days 25 mile radius City annually City 

Hotels, motels, 
vacation homes 

Commercial Indoor 
Lodging (98-206)* 

  State & Fire 
dept. annually 

State 

Bed & Breakfast Bed & Breakfast**   State & Fire 
Dept. annually 

State 

 

Section 98-206 (8)(y) Short Term Rental 

Short term rental properties are permitted in all zoning classifications in the city per State Statutes.  

The properties are inspected yearly as the applications are submitted and renewed. 

 

* Section 98-206 Commercial Land Uses  

(k) Commercial Indoor Lodging Description: Commercial indoor lodging facilities include land uses which provide sleeping accommodations for 
overnight and/or extended stay housing in individual rooms or suites of rooms, for consideration to transients. Such land uses may provide in-
room or in-suite kitchens, and may also provide indoor recreational facilities for the exclusive use of their customers. This land use includes but 
is not limited to hotels and motels. Commercial indoor lodging facilities also include land uses which provide sleeping accommodations for 
transients for overnight and/or extended stay housing in distinct housing units, including single-family, two-flat, twin home, duplex, townhouse, 
multiplex and apartment dwelling units, including but not limited to land uses commonly referred to as “cottages”, “vacation homes”, “tourist 
homes”, “resort homes”, “fractional ownership and time share units”. As opposed to residential land uses, such commercial indoor lodging land 
uses are intended and managed to accommodate transients and tourists, and are thus prohibited from all Residential zoning districts, and from 
the Neighborhood Office and Neighborhood Business zoning districts. Such land uses are typically occupied to provide access to recreational, 
cultural and business opportunities in the region, and generally do not serve as the permanent legal residence of the occupants. Dwelling units 
which are occupied by a single property owner and guests staying without consideration for less than a year, and remain unoccupied by any 



other party for the remainder of the year, such as many “second homes” are considered residential units, rather than commercial indoor 
lodging. This land use does not include Bed and Breakfast Establishments as regulated in Sec. 98-206 (4)(l). 

 

Hotel type lodgings are inspected yearly locally by LG Fire Dept.   I am not aware if they are inspected by the state annually. 

**Bed and Breakfast Establishment Description: Bed and breakfast establishments are exclusively indoor lodging facilities which provide meals 

only to paying lodgers. Such land uses may provide indoor recreational facilities for the exclusive use of their customers.  

g. Each operator shall keep a list of names of all persons staying at the bed and breakfast operation. This list shall be kept on file for a period of 
one year. Such list shall be available for inspection by City officials at any time.  

h. The maximum stay for any occupants of a bed and breakfast operation shall be fourteen (14) days. 



Category: Zoning: Length of Stay: Owner/manager 
Availability: 

Inspections/ 
Frequency: 

Licenses: 

Short Term-Rental All zoning 
classifications 

6 – 29 days 25 mile radius City annually City 

Hotels, motels, 
vacation homes 

Commercial Indoor 
Lodging (98-206)* 

  State & Fire 
dept. annually 

State 

Bed & Breakfast Bed & Breakfast**   State & Fire 
Dept. annually 

State 

 

Section 98-206 (8)(y) Short Term Rental 

Short term rental properties are permitted in all zoning classifications in the city per State Statutes.  

The properties are inspected yearly as the applications are submitted and renewed. 

 

* Section 98-206 Commercial Land Uses  

(k) Commercial Indoor Lodging Description: Commercial indoor lodging facilities include land uses which provide sleeping accommodations for 
overnight and/or extended stay housing in individual rooms or suites of rooms, for consideration to transients. Such land uses may provide in-
room or in-suite kitchens, and may also provide indoor recreational facilities for the exclusive use of their customers. This land use includes but 
is not limited to hotels and motels. Commercial indoor lodging facilities also include land uses which provide sleeping accommodations for 
transients for overnight and/or extended stay housing in distinct housing units, including single-family, two-flat, twin home, duplex, townhouse, 
multiplex and apartment dwelling units, including but not limited to land uses commonly referred to as “cottages”, “vacation homes”, “tourist 
homes”, “resort homes”, “fractional ownership and time share units”. As opposed to residential land uses, such commercial indoor lodging land 
uses are intended and managed to accommodate transients and tourists, and are thus prohibited from all Residential zoning districts, and from 
the Neighborhood Office and Neighborhood Business zoning districts. Such land uses are typically occupied to provide access to recreational, 
cultural and business opportunities in the region, and generally do not serve as the permanent legal residence of the occupants. Dwelling units 
which are occupied by a single property owner and guests staying without consideration for less than a year, and remain unoccupied by any 



other party for the remainder of the year, such as many “second homes” are considered residential units, rather than commercial indoor 
lodging. This land use does not include Bed and Breakfast Establishments as regulated in Sec. 98-206 (4)(l). 

 

Hotel type lodgings are inspected yearly locally by LG Fire Dept.   I am not aware if they are inspected by the state annually. 

**Bed and Breakfast Establishment Description: Bed and breakfast establishments are exclusively indoor lodging facilities which provide meals 

only to paying lodgers. Such land uses may provide indoor recreational facilities for the exclusive use of their customers.  

g. Each operator shall keep a list of names of all persons staying at the bed and breakfast operation. This list shall be kept on file for a period of 
one year. Such list shall be available for inspection by City officials at any time.  

h. The maximum stay for any occupants of a bed and breakfast operation shall be fourteen (14) days. 

 

The city does not inspect conventional rental properties such as month to month or leased (landlord  /  tenant type) rentals . 



































CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
RIVIERA PROJECT - PHASE 1

BUDGETED FOR PROJECT - 2020 2,152,386.00   
CARRYOVER FROM 2019 - RESOLUTION 20-R06 23,620.00        
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET 2,176,006.00   

ORIGINAL CONTRACT 2,168,332.00   
Pay Request #1 (17,274.80)       
Pay Request #2 (201,980.45)     
Pay Request #3 (436,145.95)     
Pay Request #4 (330,321.65)     

1,182,609.15   
Pay Request #5 (pending) (548,346.65)     
Balance to Finish, plus Retainage 634,262.50      

*Costs to date were for the new roof, windows, and tuckpointing

Pay Request #6 for May work completed - amount not yet known
























	0-June 8, 2020 Council Agenda
	City of Lake Geneva regular common council
	Monday, June 8, 2020 6:00 p.m.

	08a-May 26, 2020 Council Minutes
	UCity of Lake Geneva regular common council Minutes
	UTuesday, May 26, 2020 6:00 p.m.

	08b-May 28, 2020 Special Council Minutes
	UCity of Lake Geneva Special common council Minutes
	UThursday, May 28, 2020 6:00 p.m.

	09a-Massage Establishment License Application- O'Mann Therapeutic Massage LLC
	11- Ordinance 20-04- Amending the Zoning Code- Short Term Rentals
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	12-Resolution 20-R43- Resolution to Ratify the Emergency Proclamation
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	13-Resolution 20-R42- Combining Polling Locations for the August 2020 Partisan Primary
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	14-Memo to LG City_CITP20
	15aa-Resolution 20-R38-Fee Schedule- Short Term Rental Permit Fee
	Schedule of Fees

	15ab-Lodging Chart - fees
	15ac-STR fees 5-2-20
	15ba-MSI Pay Request #5
	15bb-Riviera Capital Projects Summary
	Sheet1

	15ca- Prepaid Bills-FLR Approved June 2, 2020
	15cb- Regular Bills- FLR Approved June 2, 2020



